
 

 
Person cyswllt:  Connor Hall, Cynghorydd Craffu 
Ffôn:  01633 656656 
E-bost:Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Dyddiad cyhoeddi: Dydd Iau, 16 Medi 2021 
 

Agenda 
Pwyllgor Rheoli Trosolwg a Chraffu 
 
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 23 Medi 2021 
 
Amser: 4.00 pm 
 
Lleoliad: Virtual Meeting 
 
At: Cynghorwyr: L Lacey (Cadeirydd), G Berry, P Hourahine, M Al-Nuaimi, Y Forsey, 

C Ferris, M Evans, C Evans, F Hussain and J Hughes 
 
 
 
Eitem  Wardiau 

Dan Sylw 
  

1   Ymddiheuriadau   
Cllr Charles Ferris 
 

 

 
2   Datganiadau o ddiddordeb   

 
 

 
3   Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf  (Tudalennau 3 - 20) 

 
 

 
4   PSPO Canol y Ddinas  (Tudalennau 21 - 54) 

 
 

 
5   Casgliad Adroddiadau Pwyllgorau   

Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will 
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and 
comments on previous items for actioning.  
  
 

 

 
6   Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu  (Tudalennau 55 - 60) 

a)      Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1) 

b)      Actions Arising (Appendix 2) 

c)      Information Reports (Appendix 3) 

Click here to join the meeting as an attendee. 

  

  
 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzMyZTE0OWEtODI0ZC00OGNiLThlMzYtYjRlMDA0ZDE3YzI1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222c4d0079-c52c-4bb3-b3ca-d8eaf1b6b7d5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d62617b2-b837-47a6-bd3b-14a78fd785d7%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a


 

 

 
 



 

This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

Minutes 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Date: 10 September 2021 
 
Time: 10.00 am 
 
Present: Councillors L Lacey (Chair), G Berry, P Hourahine, M Al-Nuaimi, Y Forsey, 

C Ferris, M Evans and Hussain 
 
 Rhys Cornwall (Head of People and Business Change), Chris Humphrey (Interim 

Strategic Director - People), Beverly Owen (Strategic Director (Place)), Connor 
Hall (Scrutiny Adviser), Samantha Schanzer and Felicity Collins 

 
In Attendance:   
 
Apologies: Councillors C Evans 
 
 
 
1 Declarations of Interest  

 
Cllr Ferris declared an interest as a Patron of the Friends of Newport Ship and stated the 
intention to raise a related issue during the meeting. 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
A committee member asked that in the first paragraph of page 10 it be clarified that the 
attending Police Officer, Sergeant Butt agreed that a blanket ban on begging would assist in 
tackling the issue.  
 
A committee member asked to amend page 11 of the minutes to add “frequently” when 
discussing the advertisement of the PSPO consultation being done on social media to 
express the expectation that it being an ongoing campaign to include the public.  
 
A committee member asked for a note to be made regarding the agenda being changed to 
ensure consistency.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2021 were then accepted as a true and accurate 
record. 
 

3 Corporate Annual Report and Director of Social Services Report  
 
The Leader welcomed the committee to the presentation and proposed to begin this item by 
presenting an overview of the report. The Leader began by expressing her pleasure to 
present the 4th Corporate Annual Progress Report 2020-21 on Newport City Council’s 
progress against the Corporate Plan 2017-22. The Leader reminded committee that the 
purpose of the report is to reflect on previous year, and asses the achievements made, the 
improvements to be made and to look forward to the remainder of the term. The Leader 
informed committee that a more detailed analysis of the Council’s performance across the 8 
service areas was reported to the Performance Scrutiny Committee in June and the report 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 3



 

 

presented to committee today summarises the Council’s overall delivery against service 
plans and reflects on other statutory requirements that the Council delivers.  
The Leader welcomed the opportunity to for the committee to provide feedback, 
recommendations on improving the important and any considerations that the Cabinet and 
Senior Officers had not taken into account. The Leader advised committee that the final 
report would be taken to Cabinet in October and published on the Council’s website in both 
Welsh and English. 
The Leader stressed that it was important to be mindful that this reflection was undertaken 
during the pandemic, and not all data was available due to the Welsh Government and the 
Welsh Local Government Association suspending some benchmarking across authorities 
during 2020-21. The Leader acknowledged the limited benchmarking data available for the 
2020-21 period as the focus for all 22 authorities was on maintaining essential service 
provision during this period.  
The Leader reminded committee that in 2017, 4 wellbeing objectives were set to improve 
constituent’s lives; these being to improve skills, educational outcomes and employment 
opportunities; to promote economic growth and regeneration while protecting the 
environment; to enable people to be healthy, independent and resilient; and to build cohesive 
and sustainable communities. The Leader noted that these objectives were at the core of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and delivery over this term.  
The Leader acknowledged that the last 18 months had been challenging for the Council, the 
communities, and the Council’s partners, and that the pandemic had and would continue to 
have an impact on communities and the economy in Newport. The Leader further 
acknowledged that over this period, the Council have had to make difficult decisions to 
ensure that services were maintained for the city’s most vulnerable people, that staff and 
Members were protected and ensuring that services, businesses and people adhered to 
restrictions and guidance. The Leader stated that they have taken this opportunity to reflect 
on what has been learned and to recognise the Council’s partners and Newport’s 
communities for their efforts.  
The Leader highlighted the inequality that the crisis has emphasised and that they were fully 
aware of the challenges and further work needed to be overcome this gap but also wanted to 
ensure services would be sustainably delivered in the long term for these communities.  
The Leader stated that Cabinet endorsed 4 strategic recovery aims in order to support the 
Council’s response and recovery, which closely aligned to the Corporate Plan wellbeing 
objectives. The main aims were to ensure the Council were able to respond to the crisis, 
recover its services and learn and develop with new opportunities. These strategic recovery 
objectives were to understand and respond to the additional challenges presented by Covid-
19, to understand and respond to the impact of Covid-19 on the city’s economic and 
environmental goals, to promote and protect the health and wellbeing of people, and to 
provide people with the resources needed when coming out of the pandemic. The Leader 
informed committee that the delivery of these aims was monitored by the service plans and 
were reviewed by the Performance Scrutiny Committee in June. The Leader added that the 
Council’s Cabinet receive monthly updates on the Covid-19 response and the progress made 
against the recovery aims.  
The Leader wanted to emphasise the capital programme where in 2020-21, the capital spend 
was £26.2m on assets and projects to maintain and improve service delivery which included 
£7m investment schools under the 21st Century Schools Programme, asset maintenance of 
school buildings, £10m towards active travel schemes and conversion to electric fleet 
vehicles, £1.6m investment in social care and £7m investment regeneration projects. The 
Leader recognised that this was done during the challenge of the pandemic.  
The Leader introduced the first wellbeing objective and strategic recovery aim for an 
overview, which focused on education, reducing inequalities in education, providing people 
with skills and training to support the economy, and providing employment opportunities: 
 

• The Leader noted that this objective aligned with the strategic recovery aim which 
focused on providing a safe environment for children and ensuring students had 
access to technology and devices to undertake learning.  The Leader also noted that 
it was focused on ensuring the gap between disadvantaged and BAME children didn’t 

Tudalen 4



 

 

widen due to the pandemic, as well as supporting those made unemployed due to the 
crisis with retraining and returning to work which has seen progress over the 
Summer.  
 

• The Leader emphasised that despite challenges faced by students and schools, good 
GSCE and A-Level results were achieved. The Leader reminded committee that the 
Council and schools supported pupils with free school meals using supermarket 
vouchers, as well as providing 6700 devices to pupils, 1300 MyFi units for internet 
access. The Leader mentioned the support that vulnerable children had received, 
focusing on key initiatives for well-being and mental health. The Leader mentioned 
the work surrounding the 21st Century Schools programme that was enabled through 
collaboration between the Council and programme.  
 

• The Leader stated that it would be “remiss of [her]” to not emphasise the key role of 
the Community Regeneration Team from Community Hubs where they offer support 
to families and communities. The Leader expanded on this to acknowledge that 
despite the challenges experienced, they had worked with Digital Communities Wales 
and were able to offer I.T. equipment and support for remote learning and offered 
support through the Reach Restart Programme, which was offered to refugees in the 
city, with 95 assessments and supporting 74 people to gain skills and qualifications  
  

• The Leader invited questions about said objective to which a committee member 
noted that the committee had agreed in the pre-meeting to hear the whole report and 
then submit questions. The Chair questioned whether the Leader was happy to 
continue the presentation, to which the Leader agreed.  

 
The Leader introduced the second wellbeing objective, which outlined the promotion of 
economic growth and regeneration whilst protecting the environment: 
 

 
• The Leader noted that it aligned to the Strategic Recovery aim 2 which dealt with the 

support of the environment and the economy, and the economic recovery from the 
impacts of Covid-19 and Brexit, and recognised the work being done to improve the 
environment with the Council’s and Welsh Government’s commitment to be Net Zero 
on carbon emissions by 2030.  
 

• The Leader acknowledged the outstanding contribution that teams have made, 
making specific note of the efforts of the Finance Team who in 2020-21 administered 
over £19m in rates relief which resulted in huge pressures being taken away from 
1000 businesses. The Leader acknowledged the collaboration between the Council 
and businesses which allowed them to reopen and offered advice and guidance on 
creating and maintaining Covid secure environments. The Leader emphasised the 
“tremendous” effort that public protection teams have made in their implementation of 
support of that; the Leader recognised non-compliance work undertaken and the 
scale of the work, wherein almost 5000 visits were made to support businesses and 
undertake compliance assessments, over 2500 businesses received advice from the 
team, the Business Support Team has provided over 4000 businesses with advice 
and financial support through the Welsh Government Discretionary Grant Fund, 
separate to the aforementioned rates relief provided. The team has also supported 
various grant funding schemes. 
 

• The Leader noted that during this period, key regeneration projects have been 
impacted by the pandemic but progress has been made, giving examples of the 

Tudalen 5



 

 

market arcade project, the indoor market, the sorting office, information station and 
the Chartist tower. The Leader reminds committee of the significant funding received 
toward the repairs of the transporter bridge and development of the new visitors 
centre. The Leader mentioned that the proposals for new leisure project and 
knowledge quarter have been well received by the public and was pleased to 
highlight that plans have been submitted for the leisure project. 
 

• The Leader informed committee that the Council and Waste Savers continued to 
provide waste services to residents and businesses. The Leader acknowledged that 
despite the suspension of certain benchmarking by Welsh Government, where other 
authorities suspended or reduced these services, Newport City Council continued to 
provide them.  
 

• The Leader highlighted the achievements of recycle rates within Newport as among 
the highest in Wales, that they were the first council in Wales to purchase an electric 
refuse vehicle; over 20 charge points were installed across Newport sites, and 
upgraded street and parking lighting has been installed across Newport Live and car 
parking sites.  Continued efforts made to reduce and respond to fly tipping within the 
city resulted in some successful prosecutions and the “No Mow May” project to 
improve urban wildlife and bio-diversity. 
 

The Leader introduced the third objective of the report - to enable people to be healthy, 
independent and resilient.  

• The Leader noted that this aligned with the Strategic Recovery aim to support the 
health and wellbeing of citizens.  
 

• The Leader noted that these objectives are focused on social care and the prevention 
work that the Council and its partners deliver, but also includes the preventive work 
done regarding active travel and the work done to reduce the use of cars. The Leader 
expanded this point to include the focus on supporting social care across city due to 
the significant demand this sector has faced across Wales during this period, which is 
also considered protection of Council staff while delivering the services needed.   
 

• The Leader highlighted that the Council maintained essential support services for 
vulnerable people across the city and during this period, to lessen the impact of 
isolation and loneliness on people, the Council maintained the connection for 
residents with families using technology and facilitated virtual contact. The Leader 
noted the development of a new outreach service, which will become permanent. The 
Leader drew attention to the increase in mental health references and highlighted that 
practitioners continued to take face-to-face assessments and emphasised the far 
reaching impacts of the pandemic.  
 

• The Leader highlighted that the Council were able to support those with learning 
difficulties with a new housing scheme in March and that the Community Connector 
Services has provided a service for over 2000 residents. The Leader added that 
children’s services had continued, and a new model of residential care has been 
developed for children and young people, and Rosedale opened in March 2021.  
 

• The Leader highlighted that despite the pandemic, they have maintained relationships 
and worked closely with partners, and it would be “remiss” not to emphasise the 
partnership working with Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and other Gwent 
local authorities to develop a successful test, trace and protect service. The Leader 
brought attention to other partnerships, naming Newport Live and the TTP Service for 

Tudalen 6



 

 

their support in vaccination programme by establishing mass vaccination centres. 
 

• The Leader noted the huge increase in people wanting to get outside and undertake 
activity and noted the increase in those wanting to exercise. The Leader highlighted 
the event hosted in October to support Cleaner Air Day Wales and have delivered 
new active travel routes. The Leader noted that consultation has opened for residents 
to be able to feedback on the active travel map. 
 

The Leader introduced the fourth objective, which is to build cohesive and sustainable 
communities.  
 

• The Leader explained that these objectives are focused on communities, housing and 
support for vulnerable and disadvantaged communities. The Leader explained that 
considering the pandemic and wider societal issues, this aim also includes the 
provision of opportunities to individuals and communities to address such issues and 
concerns with Council.  

• The Leader highlighted that at the start of the pandemic, the focus was on providing 
accommodation, mental health and physical health support for homeless constituents 
which would not have been achieved without partner and through working with 
registered social landlord partners and Police, the Council have been able ensure 
people have been provided affordable and secure housing. The Leader noted that 
many homeless individual do have challenging and complex lives and repeat 
placements are common, and there is “intensive” work being done around that, with 
projects being undertaken with the hope of increasing the affordable and secure 
housing to 38 units in the future.  
 

• The Leader highlighted the Neighbourhood Hub teams, who have made wellbeing 
calls to over 5000 shielding residents, delivered food parcels to isolated and 
vulnerable families and coordinated Welsh Government food parcel scheme. The 
Leader highlighted that in the Ringland ward, they worked on a home food growing 
initiative. The Leader continued to include the Flying Start teams have worked on 
digital sessions to support parents and that there has been some successful 
partnership working overall with statutory partners, Police, South Wales Fire and 
Rescue, Natural Resources Wales and Fly Tipping Action Wales to create an anti-
social behaviour data dashboard to collaboratively focus efforts and find solutions. 
The Leader went on to include the community impact assessments, which resulted in 
participatory budgeting which is aimed at helping the recovery of communities; many 
local groups have been successful in this including Parents for Change, Fit and Fed, 
and a range of others. The Leader noted that the allocations and grant awards were 
allocated via a peer review project, so citizens were directly able to decide on the 
projects they wanted to support. 
 

• The Leader noted that the Council have worked closely with communities to address 
hate speech. 
 

• The Leader highlighted the Green Flag awards for Belle Vue and Beechwood have 
continued and the implementation of refill stations have continued.  

 
A committee member thanked the Leader for a comprehensive introduction to the report and 
noted it was easier to gather all strands of a detailed report in this way. The committee 
member expressed a desire to present a question regarding objective two. The committee 
member fully agreed with the impressive work carried out by the Council to support 
businesses during Covid-19. The committee member commented that many had failed to 

Tudalen 7



 

 

appreciate the magnitude of problem the start of a lockdown presented, and while most 
businesses have been able to continue through the pandemic and emerge, unfortunately 
some have been unable to do so. The committee member commented that it would be unfair 
not to commend Cabinet, the Leader and Welsh Government, who have made it possible to 
support businesses with money made available. The committee member commended the 
serious piece of work that meant businesses have survived and are able to look to the future. 
The committee member directed the Leader to page 33 of the report and explained that it 
had taken the committee member a while to realise that the two tables at the bottom of that 
page are addressing different aims – one addressing growth and regeneration and the other 
addressing the environment and economy. They noted that the term “steps” didn’t feel clear 
and asked for clarity on what it meant exactly. The committee member noted that report was 
very timely and laudable. The committee member felt that there was a good feel about the 
areas around market – especially when pubs and restaurants able to open which was very 
impressive, though noted a lack of people as it was during the week and felt there was still 
work to be done to increase footfall. The committee member expressed the hope that the 
market arcade and refurbishment would contribute to this and noted the increase in new 
business on Commercial Street. The committee member added that there were still several 
empty shops and expressed a desire for the city to be seen as favourably as it was in the 
past, noting the sentiment seen on social media where pictures have been shared showing a 
busy city centre. The committee member added that empty shops should be filled to 
encourage liveliness in the city again. The committee member felt that the key to achieving 
these aims was jobs to encourage earning and spending within the city. The committee 
member was interested in the Leader’s thoughts on how to start bringing about this change.  

• The Leader noted that ideas within a Local Authority take a long time to become 
implemented and for outcomes to be realised. The Leader highlighted some schemes 
featured in the report including indoor market and the market arcade which they have 
been trying develop and bring forward during the duration of the Corporate Plan. The 
Leader expressed her delight to hear the difference has been noticed. The Leader 
moved on to discuss employment opportunities, which saw growth within the city 
including the rail plant which provided 300 skilled jobs. The Leader highlighted the 
importance of ensuring a pipeline of talents and skills coming through the city so local 
people can take up opportunities, stay in the city and build opportunities for the future. 
The Leader noted that there will be a continuation in the growth and expansion, 
especially of Digital and I.T. sectors, with USW and Coleg Gwent being important in 
this. The Leader noted that Coleg Gwent coming into the city, as well as the plans for 
the new leisure facility reflected commitment to Newport but also was set to increase 
footfall in the city and for local businesses. The Leader agreed with the committee 
member that it is an outstanding achievement to continue with schemes during the 
period, but the plan to help increase economic growth and regeneration has been 
implemented and we are starting to see positive outcomes from this. The Leader 
highlighted importance of technology and digital economy when seeing the 
transformation of retail. The Leader noted that people looking for “more of an 
experience” rather than just simple retail expectations and business starting to thrive 
around that model. The Leader finished by noting that it was wonderful to see the 
resilience of businesses and the thriving city Newport is becoming.  
 

• The Chief Executive Officer noted that the Leader covered the main points regarding 
the question but added that the committee member was right that the Council is 
facing a challenging period of contraction though it is not unique to Newport. The 
Chief Executive Officer noted that being in the city centre is similar to other town and 
city centres during weekdays. The Chief Executive Officer assured the committee that 
when working towards the next iteration of the Corporate Plan, it will be updated 
looking at what has been achieved and new plans will be created. The Chief 
Executive Officer noted the significant progress made but admitted that there was still 
more to do; bringing footfall into the city is not just about building projects but agrees 

Tudalen 8



 

 

with the committee member that it is also about jobs. The Chief Executive Officer 
highlighted the New Normal Report which is coming through to Cabinet, and that the 
focus as an organisation was on retaining “our heart within the core of Newport” and 
to work with Newport Live, Coleg Gwent, USW and others to hear their intentions to 
breathe new life in city campus, but the Corporate Plan must look at the city centre 
and at repurposing and reprofiling for in the upcoming years. 
 

The committee member questioned that with the loss of the previous help and investment 
from the Welsh Development Agency (which was absorbed by WG), did the Chief 
Executive Officer feel that Newport could benefit from having such a partnership and 
advisers again? 

• The Chief Executive Officer noted the strong working relationships with Welsh 
Government, both within the regeneration team and with the investment team and 
what has facilitated a different relationship with Welsh Government and adds 
value to the work in Newport is the Cardiff Capital region activity. The Chief 
Executive Officer continued to say that Newport were the first recipients of this 
investment. The Chief Executive Officer noted that the WGA was a “bit of a red 
herring” as the powers were transferred back into Welsh Government and those 
relationships are maintained. The Chief Executive Officer noted that both she and 
the Leader were having conversations with officials as and when necessary. The  
Chief Executive Officer finished by assuring committee that they were doing all 
they can to lobby, but there was more to do in terms of regeneration and 
investment and to push for Newport at every juncture.  

 
A committee member expressed that it had been fantastic how local businesses have been 
supported and thought more about that could’ve been included in the report. The committee 
member questioned how could that relationship with local businesses be built on. The 
committee member went on to highlight that thousands of phone calls made to residents and 
food parcels were delivered. The committee member had a presentation question relating to 
page 8 of the report, noting the graph of the budget versus the actual, and thought some 
improvement could be made to the presentation of information. The committee member 
questioned the order of items and thought they could be ordered more logically with 
categories given, suggesting it would be better presented in the eight service areas in report. 
The committee member felt that the first two items needed more explanation. The committee 
member moved to objective two, noting that Newport’s canal is an important part of the city’s 
heritage and thus should be included in report. The committee member moved on to highlight 
the EU funded initiatives noted on page 12 (EU Social Fund, Inspire to Work, Journey to 
Work, Skills at Work etc) – would these be stopping and if so when, and was there anything 
to replace them?  
 

• The Leader highlighted the recent grant of £1m to improve the canal tow path 
between Bettws and Cwmbran. 
 

• The Chief Executive Officer asked for clarity on where the graphs referenced are 
within the reports. The committee member provided direction and expressed that 
more explanation was required on the first two items first as well as the categories 
needing more consideration, referring back to the previous suggestion. 

• The Leader clarified for the Chief Executive Officer what the committee member 
had asked.  
 

• The Chief Executive Officer apologised as she was experiencing technological 
issues but went on to explain that the capital finance cost is the borrowing cost 
associated with any capital borrowed. 
 

Tudalen 9



 

 

• The Leader explained that the heading for non-service finance in relation to 
budget was money spent on things not directly related to service delivery, for 
example the Chief Executive’s office and is the cost of borrowing and supporting 
capital programme. The Leader suggested that officers went away and 
redeveloped graph with more explanation of graph to help members and public 
with consultation of members of committee.  
 

• The committee was happy with this suggestion. The committee member noted 
that there was a lot of great information in the report, and it would be good if it had 
a wide readership.  
 

• The committee member raises a further concern regarding the financial prosperity 
of the city and asked if it would be possible to include information such as how 
many jobs and businesses there were, the unemployment rate etc to provide a 
fuller picture of the financial position. 
 

• The Chief Executive Officer apologised again for her technological issues and 
reassured the committee that this could be included, and the annual report could 
be embellished with the information, but the Chief Executive Officer reminded 
committee that when reporting on economic growth, the information would already 
be contained within specific reports presented to scrutiny. 

 
A committee member noted that the 2017 Corporate Plan’s aims and objectives were laid out 
clearly and have evolved but raised a concern when looking at comparisons. The committee 
member gave the example of achieving Purple Flag status for Nightclubs, which the 
committee member was happy had been achieved, but noted that there was no recognition 
for the original aims and no way to scrutinise whether they had been achieved. The 
committee member appreciated the great work and unique circumstances of the last 18 
months and thanked all those involved in this. The committee member was wary that what 
had been heard during the meeting presented an incomplete picture of Newport wherein the 
positives had been presented but not the weaknesses. The committee member noted that 
they needed to be more realistic and recognise that there are weaknesses, giving the 
examples of empty buildings and issues with footfall. The committee member recognised that 
the picture presented was different for residents, namely on social media and that 
weaknesses should be addressed and improved upon to improve this for residents. The 
committee member commented that while performance indicators understandably had 
stopped during the pandemic, some of them have no data going back to 2017-18. The 
committee member expressed that they found it difficult to believe that there was no data 
recorded for this period. The committee member highlighted data from page 45, namely the 
number of packages of reablement completed throughout the year which the Council should 
have data on though wasn’t presented, as well as highlighting the data presented on 
disabled facility grants, noting the increase from 171 days to 239 days, which had increased 
significantly. The committee member commented that in previous years comparisons had 
been made against other Local Authorities and felt that it would be important moving forward 
to recognise and note whether this has this impacted more on Newport than other Local 
Authorities. The committee member stressed how important the job of scrutiny is and 
expressed that if the Council wasn’t comparing with Authorities across the UK, it would 
become very difficult to scrutinise weaknesses and strengths to address and improve. The 
committee member finished by saying that the point of the question was not to be negative 
as the committee member recognises the positive achievements of the Council but wished 
that there was a more balanced argument presented and asked for an explanation regarding 
the missing data. 

• The Leader noted that she couldn’t comment regarding data as it was an operational 
question but in regard to the missing data, as well as benchmarking being 
suspended, there had also been changes in its measure. The Leader commented 

Tudalen 10



 

 

that there was a great deal of data relating to performance scrutiny and reminded 
committee that an annual report is a summary of this information. The Leader 
suggested that digital links be made available to other data that has been presented 
to other scrutiny committees so that members would have access to that information. 
 

• The Leader highlighted the considerable investment made in terms of economic 
growth and expressed the need to be mindful that the economy is changing and there 
is a growing demand for different sectors with other sectors contracting, which the 
Council are seeking to respond to and be one step ahead of. The Leader expressed 
her pride in the attraction of digital and technological businesses to Newport. The 
Leader highlighted that she had taken the Minister for Economy to Brand Lab in the 
former Queens Hotel, which is a multi-million-pound investment in it, which will benefit 
the people of the city, as well as visiting a digital media business which has contracts 
with Channel 4 and the BBC. The Leader acknowledged that the committee member 
was correct, that more support for traditional sectors must be available. The Leader 
finished by noting that the report was a reflection of the past year, and that now we 
were moving into the end of the term, was confident that all objectives would be 
complete.  
 

• The Head of People and Business Change thanked the committee member for the 
points presented and acknowledged the significant issues encountered with 
benchmarking data for the 2020-21 year and hoped to manage expectations. The 
Head of People and Business Change noted that a lot of performance data was 
incorporated into data that goes to other committees. The Head of People and 
Business Change suggested that if committee felt an annex was needed, it could be 
included so that data was available, and committee could view trend data. The Head 
of People and Business Change noted that there was a caveat and noted that Welsh 
Government produced limited benchmarking data across Local Authorities which was 
not entirely accurate as a result. The Head of People and Business Change noted if it 
made it easier to see progression said data could be provided in a table. 
 

• The committee member noted that the report lacked data, and though there has been 
an understandable change due to circumstance, that there was some data not 
present which should have been. The committee member understood that 
amendments and changes had been made but couldn’t believe that whole sections 
had experienced such dramatic change that no data is longer relevant to be 
presented. 
 

• The Head of People and Business Change expressed that he would check for data 
but noted that changes in social services were significant.  
 

• The Acting Director of Social Services noted that a lot of this data and information 
was available but wanted to give an example to committee of the changes of 
measures. The Acting Director of Social Services explained that the performance 
framework was based on what they had to legally report into Welsh Government and 
expressed that what the Acting Director of Social Services would consider 
“management information” is available but wanted to give committee an example of it 
has changed and how careful they must be in its reporting. The Acting Director of 
Social Services noted that in 2018-19 there were 3147 adult social care assessments; 
in 2019-20, there were 4038 done but in 2020-21 they can only count 2500 due to a 
change in how they are counted, only being able to acknowledge new contacts rather 
than those they have previously contacted, so the total number was significantly more 
than they had been able to report this year as a result. The Acting Director of Social 

Tudalen 11



 

 

Services stated that they do have that information, but due to the delays in 
implementing the new performance framework, it would not be reported officially. 

The committee member acknowledged that having that information was helpful and noted 
that from a committee point of view, that changes had being going on for decades. The 
committee member expressed frustration and that perhaps there was a need for a 
recommendation to go to Cabinet to ask Welsh Government for stability.  
A committee member noted that valuable points on data had been raised but noted the 
mention of social media and residents’ perceptions of the city, which the committee member 
expressed wasn’t appropriate to be considered objective data and did not believe that social 
media could be used as a statistically representative measure of Newport's successes or 
failings to be included in reports.  
Another committee member responded to clarify that it was a general comment, not just 
relating to social media, but also comments from residents and constituents and was an 
image problem.   
 
The committee member directed attention to page 32, specifically to the table regarding the 
transaction of young people into education and the wider world. The committee member 
noted that these targets were comfortably met and that there should be some hardening of 
the targets as a result. The committee member then drew attention to the red performances, 
acknowledging the difficult and exceptional year before and asked whether these people had 
been missed and forgotten about or would a follow up be attempted? The committee 
member was generally welcoming of Corporate Reports, and noted it was fantastic to get so 
much information for comparative purposes. The committee member accepted the points 
made by the Chief Executive Officer and the Director. The committee member expressed a 
need for comparison to be done fairly between Newport and other Local Authorities if it were 
to be done and finished by thanking the Leader and Officers.  
 

• The Head of People and Business Change assured the committee that targets would 
be challenged in performance scrutiny committees. The Head of People and 
Business Change took on board the committee member’s point about the challenge 
associated with the figures, he encouraged the committee to contextualise that it 
wasn’t long ago 1/10 young people leaving schools would become NEETs, which was 
the highest rate in Wales at the time. The Head of People and Business Change 
reminded committee of the huge effort that had gone into making sure that young 
people leaving education had maintained contact with learning opportunities, and that 
a partnership effort had been required. The Head of People and Business Change 
advised committee that as they had been through performance scrutiny, the targets 
are appropriate, and the young people recorded as unknown following compulsory 
education will be tracked and work will be attempted to be done with them.  
 

• The Leader reassured committee that the Youth Academy and Work-based Academy 
had over 60 young people engaged in programmes who were at risk of becoming 
NEETs for those to be able to be engaged sustainably. 
 

• The Chief Executive Officer reassured committee that teams regularly work through 
red areas and deep dive any issues and that even though they had been through a 
pandemic and as a result the first few months of attention was focused on recovery 
and response, that performance was still a priority to monitor and improve. The Chief 
Executive Officer noted that this enabled open discussions with committees as 
sometimes investment would be required and highlighted the strong focus on 
performance trends.  
 

o The Chief Executive Officer wanted to take the opportunity to explain an 
answer to a previous question as she now had access to the data. The Chief 
Executive Officer reminded the committee that the ‘Capital Cost’ was 

Tudalen 12



 

 

regarding financing a capital programme or project and ‘Central Finance’ was 
non-service areas. The Chief Executive Officer assured committee that 
finance colleagues would give a more detailed update and review how this 
data was presented.  
 

• The committee member acknowledged the hard work put in by the team and the 
Head of People and Business Change’s passion for the project. The committee 
member wanted to highlight the Leaders’ mention of the issues of vulnerable young 
people and felt that closing down on these issues would help ensure Newport 
becoming a safer place. 
 

A committee member apologised for missing part of meeting as lost connection. The 
committee member noted that the £1m spend on the canal was good news, especially 
considering Cwmbran’s work on their canal and Caerphilly’s major structural work. The 
committee member however felt that they could do more as a council. The committee 
member expressed their disappointment that the Medieval Ship was not listed as it had been 
around for 19 years, with final completion of the reconstruction of all timbers next year. The 
committee member expressed that the Medieval ship was an important cultural asset, with 
£8m being spent on the ship to date and encouraging an estimated 150,000 visitors. The 
committee member felt it was important to be included as cultural asset as it was an 
investment, and they should get a return on it.  
 

• The Chief Executive Officer acknowledged that this was a point to be picked up and 
further discussed.  
 

• The Leader expressed that it was an important asset and supported officers adding it 
to the report.  
 

A committee member commented on the well-readable report and felt that there was a a 
balance of methods of communication, highlighting the calendar included. The committee 
member thanked the invitees their time.  
 

• The Leader thanked committee for their comments and echoed comments made by 
colleagues to thank officer teams, highlighting that this was all achieved in the context 
of the pandemic.  

 
4 Strategic Equality Plan  

 
Councillor Mayer presented the report. Councillor Mayer reminded committee that under the 
Equality Act 2010, the Council is required to report annually on its progress made under the 
strategic equality objectives and are also required as a Local Authority to publish staff 
equalities data. Councillor Mayer highlighted new partnerships were developed with external 
and internal stakeholders and were subject to community engagement. Councillor Mayer 
noted that the involvement of grassroots communities ensured that the plan provides tangible 
outcomes for communities. Councillor Mayer acknowledged that there were significant 
challenges against delivery in some areas of work, but others had gained traction. Councillor 
Mayer noted that equality work had to be flexible while addressing emerging challenges. 
Councillor Mayer explained to committee that leaving the EU has been deeply felt by migrant 
community and the focus of supporting people to be able to remain in Newport and protect 
their rights continues. Councillor Mayer noted that they were also taking stock of monitoring 
arrangements and any improvements that could be made to them. Councillor Mayer finished 
by assuring committee that equality issues are taken very seriously as a cabinet and 
reminded committee that he chaired for the Strategic Equality group.  
 

Tudalen 13



 

 

The Head of People and Business Change reminded committee that this was the first annual 
plan based off the new Strategic Equalities plan and that committee could see that there 
were 6 key focuses. The Head of People and Business Change directed committee to pages 
119-121 which was a summary that covered outcomes and key achievements.  
 
The Head of People and Business Change highlighted that the Council had signed up to 
Race Council Cymru Zero Tolerance policy and the Victims Support Hate Crime Charter. The 
Head of People and Business Change noted that there has been legislative change 
regarding the socio-economic duty which has come into effect and has been embedded in 
decision making. The Head of People and Business Change highlighted the creation of staff 
groups related to diversity, LGBTQ+ and disabilities to ensure staff voices are heard and also 
highlighted the accessibility stakeholder group. The Head of People and Business Change 
noted the close work with the Test, Trace and Protect group to ensure equality and cultural 
diversity are taken into account, acknowledging the disproportional impact to some minority 
communities. The Head of People and Business Change noted that Welsh Government Anti-
Bullying guidance has been embedded into processes and policies. The Head of People and 
Business Change highlighted the new scheme for those with learning difficulties to increase 
independent living and that Community Connectors have worked with 302 residents from 
ethnic minority backgrounds.  
 
The Head of People and Business Change highlighted that Newport was one of a few Local 
Authorities that publishes its gender pay gap each year which was reported at Council and 
noted that this continued to improve. The Head of People and Business Change noted the 
need to focus on the pay gap associated with other characteristics, and a lot of work has 
been done to improve that. The Head of People and Business Change highlighted that there 
was work being done regarding the recruit processes are improved and not exclusive of any 
qualities. The Head of People and Business Change noted the significant influence of Covid 
on communities, and the Council’s response to EU settled status which the Head of People 
and Business Change assured committee that they were working with Home Office regarding 
these issues.  
 

• A committee member echoed Councillor Mayer’s comment that sitting on the 
Strategic Equalities Committee was enjoyable and the work done by officers was 
bringing Newport into being a more inclusive city. The committee member noted that 
the report was well put together.  

 
A committee member noted that on page 123 it stated that the Leader of the Council 
established a community roundtable meeting to bring people of ethnic backgrounds together 
to discuss race equality and asked for an explanation as to how membership is decided for 
that group. The committee member noted that the committee member hadn’t heard of the 
group before. 
 

• The Head of People and Business Change informed the committee that it was an 
informal group wherein the Leader meets with some BAME community 
representatives and was in part a response to Covid but also to the Black Lives 
Matter issues and other issues seen within Newport. The Head of People and 
Business Change informed committee that this group met every 3 months. 
 

• The Connected Communities Manager noted the well-established cultural hub made 
up of around 23 grassroots community organisations. This hub exists virtually, and 
members are nominated through these organisations. The Connected Communities 
Manager also noted that members also come from their main race equality 
organisations including East Race Council Cymru etc and reiterated that it was 
established off of the back of Black Lives Matter campaign and a lack of confidence in 

Tudalen 14



 

 

public services at the time.  
 

A committee member raised concern regarding self-appointed representatives who don’t 
necessarily represent the views of other people within community. The committee member 
mentioned the fortnightly meetings with Gwent Police and the Partnership meeting with the 
Council and asked whether these were similar and asked how people were appointed to the 
roundtable committee.   
 

• The Connected Communities Manager assured the committee that the issue was 
something they were acutely aware of and that the Leader was passionate about 
hearing grassroots voices rather than self-appointed ones. The Connected 
Communities Manager reassured committee that there was a good mix of people who 
haven’t previously been heard and those who are experienced cultural 
representatives. The Connected Communities Manager addressed that partnership 
meetings and the fortnightly dial in were police lead and established in early 
lockdown; The Connected Communities Manager reminded committee that this was 
an open invitation to anyone across Gwent. 
 

A committee member wanted to applaud the Leader for her enthusiasm regarding engaging 
with ethnic minority communities but wanted to emphasise that caution was required, 
highlighting the importance of the previous committee member’s point. The committee 
member noted the importance of proper constitution for committees and groups and stated 
that it was important for Members to know about such groups, who was on them, how they 
met, how often and why they were meeting/access to meeting minutes. The committee 
member expressed that we must be mindful of tokenism and move away from it. The 
committee member highlighted the importance of engaging with various communities in 
Newport and supporting community cohesion, which must be taken seriously. The committee 
member questioned the purpose of the One Newport Public Service Board and why had 
certain issues not been raised there if certain agencies were meeting there. The committee 
member wished to make the recommendation to look at implementing proper constitution for 
that committee and for the white community to be included. The committee member raised 
concern for young people who may feel disconnected could be further alienated when seeing 
how other communities are engaged and supported. The committee member reiterated 
concern felt due to the informality of the committee and felt it should be a formal and more 
advertised. The committee member raised another issue regarding his concern of police stop 
and search requests on people from mainly ethnic communities and questioned why 
something hadn’t been done relating to that. The committee member had met with a Senior 
Police Officer regarding this but noted it had not been followed up. The committee member 
noted that there had been two reports in The South Wales Argus that showed Newport had a 
high rate of stop and search and was an issue for the black, Muslim and Asian communities. 
The committee member expressed that the committee member wanted this issue picked up 
and wanted to understand more about it. The committee member noted that he was assured 
by the Police Officer that most cases were justified but  only 25% stop and search made 
resulted in an offense being committed. The committee member highlighted the 75% of 
people who had been stopped for no reason. The committee member reiterated that the 
roundtable group should be formed properly as the committee member didn’t want issues 
pushed aside because another committee exists. 
 

• The Head of People and Business Change reminded the committee that the Strategic 
Equalities group is not a committee but is a group of champions, which has no 
constitution and is a part of the Cabinet Member’s reaching out to test views. The 
Head of People and Business Change highlighted that it was not a part of the 
Council’s decision-making process. The Head of People and Business Change 
advised that if committee wanted to make recommendation regarding that, it was their 
decision. The Head of People and Business Change acknowledged the other points 

Tudalen 15



 

 

such as engaging with communities and commented that it was sometimes difficult to 
hear other voices and reassured the committee that the Connected Communities 
Manager and her team do work outside of items discussed to ensure people are 
heard and discussions are had. The Head of People and Business Change noted the 
comments made which need to take into consideration and reminded committee that 
should a recommendation need to be made, that was their prerogative.  

 
A committee member acknowledged working towards having a representative workforce of 
Newport’s population and noted that this would be difficult to achieve. The committee 
member was concerned about the display of data regarding representation being 
contextually relevant to the workforce. The committee member gave the example of 
disability, with 2.1% of workforce having a disability and questioned how this compared to the 
population as a whole and whether this would have to be restricted to those under 65 year 
olds as that’s the retirement age. The committee member noted a similar issue relating to 
sexual orientation, where 1.3% of the workforce identified as LGBTQ+ and questioned 
whether in this case the whole population would be compared against as it wasn’t age 
related. The committee member questioned whether a comparison could be made to 
illustrate how representative the workforce was. The committee member also highlighted that 
76% of the workforce was female and guessed that this was likely due to the nature of the 
roles, and that these specific figures were a long way off recognising a balance. The 
committee questioned whether marital status mattered and wasn’t sure of its relevance. The 
committee member questioned how committee would know how close a representative 
workforce was, how well is the Council doing currently and what progress was being made.  
 

• The Head of People and Business Change noted that various weightings may or may 
be put against data, but it is the protected characteristics in the Equalities Act. The 
Head of People and Business Change assured committee that where data was 
available it can be included to compare with latest census data. The Head of People 
and Business Change informed the committee that the information was an indicator 
not an absolute as was what had been declared by employees. The Head of People 
and Business Change noted that in regard to genders employed, when 
contextualised with the work done by Council and workforce – for example, 3500 
employees work in schools which is a notably female-dominated field. The Head of 
People and Business Change finished by stating that they can include in that how 
they compare against population. 

The committee member followed by noting that ethnicity was an area of focus to achieve a 
representative workforce. The committee member noted questioned how recognition would 
be made of the difference between the general public and workforce as on average the 
former would be older. The committee member reiterated that it would be good to know how 
well the council is doing in terms of representation and felt the report didn’t wholly reflect that.   

• The Head of People and Business Change assured committee that additional 
information would be included. The Head of People and Business Change noted with 
regards to disabilities, they could look at to compare with age and noted that the 
Council do have employees over the age of 67 as there is no legal requirement to 
retire and encouraged skilled and able workers who want to work to do so. The Head 
of People and Business Change highlighted that in the previous committee discussed 
the New Normal which has the possibility to increase employees retained that 
otherwise would have to leave their posts due to ill health. The Head of People and 
Business Change reiterates that the committee member’s comments have been 
taken on board and that a table will be included with the caveats around ages.  
 

• A committee member echoed the Head of People and Business Change’s point 
regarding Covid’s impact on working conditions meaning more people could be 
retained. 

Tudalen 16



 

 

 
A committee asked for clarification the second sentence on p123; did “mandated” in this 
context mean approved and will begin April 2022? 

• The Head of People and Business Change noted that equalities and diversity training 
up until this point had been non-mandatory and has now been made mandatory 
training for staff. The Head of People and Business Change assured committee that 
sessions for members would be put on.  
 

• The committee member expanded to say that the sentence needed to be 
reformulated and the Head of People and Business Change made note of this.  

 
6 Conclusion of Committee Reports 
 
Corporate Annual Report and Director of Social Services Report Conclusion  
The Scrutiny Adviser noted there were a few comments to clarify.  
The Scrutiny Adviser asked how the committee member would like to word comments 
regarding the “rosy” presentation of Newport.  

• The committee member clarified that the committee member wanted a realistic 
picture that recognised issues that need resolving with a balance of optimism.  

The Scrutiny Adviser noted the comments regarding the lack of comparison between Local 
Authorities and the recommendation to add the Medieval Ship and canals into the cultural 
section of the report. The Scrutiny Adviser noted a committee member’s comment regarding 
being happy with the presentation of the report.  

• A committee member added that the graph on page 8 needs to be reviewed with 
items needing more explanation and clarity, as well as service areas needing 
explanation and items to be organised logically. The committee member agreed that 
the canal needs to be added into the cultural heritage section. The committee 
member also noted that more information about jobs in Newport, how many 
businesses are in Newport and their employees, and unemployment rates should be 
included as these are important measures of the city’s prosperity.  
 

• The committee noted that DFG facilities on p53 has been put under fourth wellbeing 
objective but believed they’re in the wrong place. 

• The committee noted that there was an ongoing issue with not being able to make 
comparisons with previous years’ performance indicators and their consistent change 
and acknowledged that in some cases this needed to be done but not to the extent 
that the goalposts seem to have been changed if the committee was happy to make 
that recommendation.  
 
• A committee member noted that the issue is exarcerbated from the goalposts 

being moved by Welsh Government but recommended that as an aside from 
report some measures be added as appendices. The committee member gave 
the example that if a KPI has to be shown, it would be nice to see how 
performance has changed outside of the report and suggested that rather than it 
being added to the report, it came to committee as a separate item.  

 
• A committee member noted that the committee member’s point regarding the 

“rosy” picture of Newport was political and questioned how it would be minuted. 
The committee member felt that it should be taken to a vote before it was included 
in the report.  

o A committee member felt that this went back to the question of how 
minutes are formulated; whether comments are recorded as “the 

Tudalen 17



 

 

committee” or individual members. The committee member noted that 
there were no specific points raised regarding the Welsh Labour 
Government, and that it was a general comment and felt it was 
reasonable. The committee member expressed that the committee 
member would be unhappy to take that to a vote and name it a political 
comment.  
 

o The Scrutiny Adviser noted that it would be minuted as a something 
similar to “a committee member asked that the report was balanced”, 
rather than to recommend as an action from the entire committee. 
 

o The Scrutiny Adviser stated that comments should be removed from 
politics, and when individuals are named in minutes it increases the 
possibility of comments being used politically.  
 

o A committee member agreed that “a committee member” was appropriate 
to use regarding previous comments discussed. The committee member 
highlighted that committee only could give recommendations that may not 
be carried out.  

o A committee member was happy to be noted as a committee member.  
 

• The committee commented that out-of-date performance indicators should be 
updated if necessary and was not content to always use the same performance 
indicators as that causes issues also.  

o A committee member suggested that backing information should be 
presented where performance indicators had been changed but were not 
for this committee to scrutinise.  

o A committee member felt that it would be too much to read, and 
appendices were not the answer to the issue. The committee member 
expressed that reports should be clear and accepted that while they were 
not here to scrutinise the reports. The committee member felt that the 
committee member was trying to impose some data on the invitees that 
they didn’t want but accepted their explanation with doubts that targets 
would be adjusted. The committee member felt this was contrary to 
continuous improvement to not reassess targets.  

o A committee member agreed with the previous point and felt it was valid. 
 

Strategic Equality Plan 
The Scrutiny Adviser noted the shared point as to whether community groups should be 
formalised in order to accurately represent their communities.  

• The committee commended the community roundtable group initiative in engaging 
communities, but wanted the terms of invitation to be clarified and groups to be 
formalised to ensure communities can trust the person(s) representing them. 

• The committee recommended that community roundtable groups be renamed with 
regards to sensitivity to the Newport Round Table organisation. 

• The Committee agreed that the roundtables should be opened up to the wider 
community. 

• A committee member expressed that the reports were acceptable but felt that not 
enough immediacy was expressed, as well as current issues not being addressed 
universally. The committee member supported the previous comments but felt that 
more urgency needs be put on this group.  

• The committee requested information on how representative Newport City Council’s 
workforce as contextual  

Tudalen 18



 

 

 
5 Scrutiny Adviser Reports  

 
Forward Work Programme:  
 
A committee member reminded committee that the next meeting is 23rd September with the 
PSPO City Centre consultation to return.  

• The Scrutiny Adviser clarified that it would be Thursday evening. 
 

The committee member reminded committee the meeting following that would be Friday 29th 
September regarding the Climate Change report but may be something else.  

• A committee member noted they would have to give apologies for this meeting. 
 

The Scrutiny Adviser advised that the meeting regarding the Welsh Strategy report has been 
requested for December, and he was enquiring as to their availability instead to be heard in 
October, but noted it was committee’s preference whether they’d rather shorter, more regular 
meetings or larger, longer meetings.  

• A committee member felt that there was the right number of meetings and single item 
agendas were unnecessary but stressed the need to ensure report information is 
relevant and concise. The committee member was concerned about the length of 
reports and wanted focus to be brought to presenting relevant information. The 
committee member supported adding links to additional information but was still 
concerned about the lengths of reports. 

o A committee member agreed with this.  
 

• A committee member was concerned about the inclusion of links in reports as if future 
queries arise, it could cause issues as committee would technically have the 
information but they wouldn’t have necessarily seen it if not directly in the report itself.  
 

A committee member questioned how committee would know that the Parks PSPO maps 
were reviewed and was concerned that in the future, it would be expressed that committee 
were happy with the maps when the committee member felt they were not.  

• A committee member noted that the scrutiny sheet was missing and the Scrutiny 
Adviser apologised for this, but assured the committee responses had been received 
and would be forwarded to committee. 
 

A committee member noted that the Leader gave a good presentation by taking the lead on 
the first report and her summary made it easier to understand the report and narrow down 
the questions to be asked. The committee member expressed it would be a good model to 
follow in the future, noting that it would be better than going page by page. The committee 
member expressed hope that other Executives and Officers would follow that example going 
forward. 
 
A committee member thanked the committee for attending.  
 
This meeting was terminated at: 12:33pm  
 

 
The meeting terminated at 12.33 pm 
 

Tudalen 19



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



Page 1 of 34 
 

Scrutiny 
Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Date:   23rd September 2021 
 
Subject: City Centre PSPO - 2021-2024 (Public Spaces 

Protection Order) 
 
Author  Rhys Thomas – Principal Environmental Health Officer  
 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 
• Gareth Price – Head of Law and Regulation 
• Rhys Thomas – Regulatory Services Manager 
• Michelle Tett – Community Protection Manager  
• Inspector Jodie Davies – Gwent Police  

 

 
  

1.0 Recommendations to the Committee

At this meeting, the Committee is asked to 

1.1 Note the Consultation responses consisting of 108 Electronic online responses. 

1.2 Agree (or otherwise) that the consultation process has been completed in 
accordance with the previously agreed consultation plan presented to Scrutiny in 
July 2021

1.3 Confirm (or otherwise) the need for the restrictions outlined in the draft PSPO 
following the completion of the consultation process. 

1.4 Note the recommendations of Officers at section 5.8

1.5 If satisfied and on completion of the above to make recommendations that the 
Council considers and approves this PSPO at its next meeting in October 2021

Tudalen 21

Eitem Agenda 4



Page 2 of 34 
 

2.0 Context and History 

2.1 Scrutiny Committee previous hearing – July 2021 
 

2.1.1 In July 2021, Scrutiny committee reviewed evidence from Newport Officers and Gwent 
Police. The restrictions and the wording of the draft PSPO were scrutinised.  
 
2.1.2 Pending minor amendments to the consultation questionnaire, the committee agreed to 
proceed to 28 days of consultation on the proposed PSPO and to hear the result of that 
consultation in its September meeting. 
 
2.1.3 The consultation process ended on 28th September 2021. The full consultation 
responses are included in the appendices 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
2.1.4 Scrutiny Committee asked for additional consultees to be approached, in particular 
businesses within the City Centre. NCC Officers confirm that the link to the consultation 
response was sent or provided to: 
 
 Ward Councillors 
 City Centre PubWatch members (via licensing team) 
 City Centre Taxi Ranks (via licensing team) 
 Newport Business against Crime (Retail network) 

SHARE centre 
Wallich 
Newport City Homes. 

 
  

Tudalen 22



Page 3 of 34 
 

3.0 Proposed City Centre PSPO (2021 – 2024)  
 
3.1 The proposed content of the PSPO is below pending Scrutiny agreement and presentation 
at a subsequent full council.  
 
 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 
SECTION 59 

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2021 
CITY CENTRE, NEWPORT 

 
NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL in exercise of its powers under Section 59 of the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) hereby makes this Order, being satisfied on 
reasonable grounds that activities in a public space, namely in the CITY CENTRE area of 
Newport, have had or are likely to have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the 
locality and that these activities involved various anti-social behaviours. Further, Newport City 
Council believes that the effect, or likely effect, of the said activities is, or is likely to be, persistent 
or continuing in nature, such as to make the activities unreasonable and justifies the restrictions 
imposed by this Order:- 
 
This Order shall come into operation on               xxxx                  2021 and shall have effect for 
a period of 3 years thereafter, unless extended by further Orders under the Council’s statutory 
powers. 
 
This Order relates to the public place in the City of Newport as shown edged red on the Plan, 
annexed 1 to this Order (“the Restricted Area”) commonly referred to as “THE CITY CENTRE”.  
 
The effect of the Order is to impose the following prohibitions in the Restricted Area at all times 
and will be enforced by Police Constables, Police Community Support Officers with delegated 
authority or an authorised Council Officer. 
 
PROHIBITIONS:- 
 
1. No person shall, within the restricted area refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over any 

containers (sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain alcohol, when required to do 
so by an authorised officer to prevent public nuisance or disorder. 
 

2. No person shall within the restricted area undertake “street trading” which includes peddling, 
charity collecting or touting for services, subscriptions or donations UNLESS authorised to 
do so by an existing Police or Council issued or Council recognised Street Trading / Charity 
Collection / Promotions consent, license or written permission or holds a valid Pedlars 
Certificate. 

 
3. No person shall within the restricted area beg within 10 meters of a cash or payment 

machine or beg in a manner which is aggressive or intimidating, or which has caused or is 
likely to cause a member of the public to feel harassed, alarmed, or distressed. 

 
4. No person shall behave (either individually or in a group) in a manner that causes or is likely 

to cause harassment, alarm or distress to a member of the public; persons who breach this 
prohibition shall, when ordered to do so by an authorised person, disperse immediately or 
by such a time as may be specific and, in a manner, as may be specified by the said 
authorised person and failure to do so is a further breach of this Order. 
 

5. No person shall within the Restricted Area:   

Tudalen 23



Page 4 of 34 
 

 
a. Ingest, inhale, inject, smoke, possess or otherwise use intoxicating substances;  
b. Sell or supply intoxicating substances;  

 
Intoxicating substances (commonly referred to as “legal highs”) is given the following definition: 
substances with the capacity to stimulate or depress the central nervous system (does not 
include alcohol); and Exemptions shall apply in cases where the substances are used for valid 
and demonstrable medicinal use, given to an animal as a medicinal remedy, are cigarettes 
(tobacco) or vaporisers or are food stuffs (to include drinks) regulated by food health and safety 
legislation. 

 
Persons who breach this restriction shall surrender any such intoxicating substance in his/her 
possession when asked to do so by an authorised officer. 
 
6. Any person in charge of a dog within the restricted area shall be in breach of this Order if 

he/she fails to keep the dog on a lead (of no more than 1.5meters in length). 
 

7. Cyclists, or users of scooters, E-scooters, E-bikes, skateboards and hover boards, are to 
dismount if requested to do so by an authorised officer, if they are of the opinion that the 
operator is riding in an unsafe manner which is causing or is likely to cause a danger to the 
public in the Restricted Area.” 

 
 
FIXED PENALTY NOTICES AND OFFENCES:- 
 
1. It is an offence for a person without reasonable excuse to engage in any activity that is 

prohibited by this Order. 
 

2. In accordance with section 63 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order by 
consuming alcohol or by refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is liable on 
summary conviction to a maximum penalty of a Level 2 fine (currently £500) or to a Fixed 
Penalty Notice up to £100. 

 
3. In accordance with section 67 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order other 

than by consuming alcohol or by refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is 
liable on summary conviction to a maximum penalty of a Level 3 fine (currently £1000) or to 
a Fixed Penalty Notice up to £100. 

APPEALS:- 
4. If any interested person wishes to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the 

Council had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied 
with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within 6 weeks from the 
date on which this Order is made. 

 
Dated: 
THE COMMON SEAL of     ) 
NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL was   ) 
here unto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
      ) 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 24



Page 5 of 34 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ANNEX 1 – Newport City Centre, Public Space Protection Order Restricted Area  
 

 
  

Tudalen 25



Page 6 of 34 
 

4.0 Consultation feedback  
 
4.1 For each of the restrictions and the geographical location of the PSPO, the consultees 
were asked to agree or disagree with the need for the control and also provide ‘free text’ 
feedback or additional comment.  The graphical results of this consultation are presented, by 
question, below and include the equalities monitoring data. 
 

Question 1 (107 responses) 

 
 

Question 2 (107 responses)  

 

Resident of 
Stow Hill 

Ward / City 
Centre

Worker in 
City Centre

Newport 
based org, 
business, 
charity or 

similar

Visitor to 
Newport

Resident of 
wider 

Newport
Other

Percentage of people 15.89% 14.95% 6.54% 9.35% 52.34% 0.93%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Are you a.....?

Never Rarely Occasionally Frequently
Percentage of people 7.48% 10.28% 48.60% 33.64%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Have you experienced Anti-Social Behaviour in the City Centre in the 
past 12 months?

Tudalen 26



Page 7 of 34 
 

Question 2a (103 responses) 

 

Question 3 (107 responses) 

 
 
 

50.49%

60.19%

56.31%

21.36%

28.16%

65.05%

48.54%

45.63%

38.83%

2.91%

Groups or Gatherings of people

Drinking alcohol on the streets

Aggressive or intimidating begging

Verbal Harassment

Urination or defecation on the street

Littering

Drug use, dealing or finding drug paraphernalia

Aggressive or dangerous use of push bikes

Aggressive or dangerous use of E-scooters and...

Other

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

What types of ASB?

Percentage of people

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 94.39% 5.61%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

No person shall, within the restricted area refuse to stop drinking 
alcohol or hand over any containers (sealed or unsealed) which are 

believed to contain alcohol, when required to do so by an authorised 
officer to prevent public nuisance or disorder

Tudalen 27



Page 8 of 34 
 

Question 4 (107 responses) 

 

 
  

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 95.33% 4.67%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

No person shall within the restricted area undertake “street trading” 
which includes peddling, charity collecting or touting for services, 

subscriptions or donations UNLESS authorised to do so by an existing 
Police or Council issued or Council recognised 

Tudalen 28



Page 9 of 34 
 

Question 5 (107 responses) 
 

 

Question 5C (107 responses) 

 

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 95.33% 4.67%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

No person shall within the restricted area beg within 10 meters of a 
cash or payment machine or beg in a manner which is aggressive or 

intimidating, or which has caused or is likely to cause a member of the 
public to feel harassed, alarmed, or distressed

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 78.50% 21.50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

The current PSPO restriction prevents begging within 10m of a cash 
point or payment machine.  Should the 10m caveat and link to a 

payment machine or cash point be removed so it applies to anywhere 
in the restricted area?

Tudalen 29



Page 10 of 34 
 

Question 6 (108 responses) 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 96.30% 3.70%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

No person shall behave (either individually or in a group) in a manner 
that causes or is likely to cause harassment, alarm or distress to a 

member of the public; persons who breach this prohibition shall, when 
ordered to do so by an authorised person, dis

Tudalen 30



Page 11 of 34 
 

Question 7 (108 responses)  

 
 
 
 

Question 8 (108 responses) 

 

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 94.44% 5.56%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

No person shall within the Restricted Area:  Ingest, inhale, inject, 
smoke, possess or otherwise use intoxicating substances; Sell or supply 
intoxicating substances; Intoxicating substances (commonly referred to 

as “legal highs”) is given the following de

Agree Disagree
Percentage of people 97.22% 2.78%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Any person in charge of a dog within the restricted area shall be in 
breach of this Order if he/she fails to keep the dog on a lead (of no more 

than 1.5meters in length)

Tudalen 31



Page 12 of 34 
 

 

Question 9 (101 responses) 

 
 

Question 10 (106 responses) 

 

Yes No
Percentage of people 30.69% 69.31%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Is there anything else you would like to see included in the Order to 
help reduce Anti-Social Behaviour in and around the City Centre / Stow 

Hill Ward?

Keep to the existing 
boundary Make bigger Make smaller

Percentage of people 54.72% 41.51% 3.77%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

What do you think we should do to the boundary covered by the 
PSPO?

Tudalen 32



Page 13 of 34 
 

 

Question 11 (Equalities data) (108 responses) 

 
 
 

Question 12 (Equalities data) (108 responses) 

 
 

Male Female Non-binary Self-identify Prefer not to 
say

Percentage of people 50.93% 44.44% 0.00% 0.00% 4.63%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

What is your gender?

Under 
18 

years 
old

18-24 
years 
old

25-34 
years 
old

35-44 
years 
old

45-54 
years 
old

55-64 
years 
old

65-74 
years 
old

75 
years 

or older

Prefer 
not to 

say

Percentage of people 0.00% 3.70% 19.44% 23.15% 15.74% 21.30% 9.26% 1.85% 5.56%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Age?

Tudalen 33



Page 14 of 34 
 

 

Question 13 (Equalities data) (107 responses) 

 
 

Question 14 (Equalities data) (107 responses) 

 
  

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%
20%

Allt-
Yr-Y

n
Alway

Beechwood
Bettw

s

Caerle
on

Gaer
Graig

Langsto
ne

Lla
nwern

Llis
werry

Malpas

Marsh
fie

ld

Pillg
wenlly

Ringland

Rogerst
one

Shafte
sbury (C

rin
dau)

St Ju
lians

Stow Hill

Tredegar P
ark (D

uffry
n)

Vict
oria

 (M
aindee)

I d
on't l

ive in Newport

What area of Newport do you live in?

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e

Yes No Prefer not to say
Percentage of people 9.35% 81.31% 9.35%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Do you consider yourself to be disabled?

Tudalen 34



Page 15 of 34 
 

Question 15 (Equalities data) (106 responses) 

 
 
 

Question 16 (Equalities data) (108 responses) 
 

 

Yes No Prefer not to say
Percentage of people 9.35% 81.31% 9.35%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Do you consider yourself a Welsh speaker?

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

White
 - W

el / 
Eng / S

co / N
I / 

Briti
sh

White
 - I

rish

Gypsy or ir
ish

 Traveller

Other W
hite

White
 & Black Carib

bean

White
 & Asia

n

White
 & Black Afric

an

Other M
ixe

d
Indian

Pakista
ni

Bangladeshi

Other A
sia

n

Black Afric
an

Black Carib
bean

Other B
lack

Arab

Chinese

Other e
thnic g

roup

Prefer n
ot to

 sa
y

What is your ethnic group?

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e

Tudalen 35



Page 16 of 34 
 

Question 17 (Equalities data) (105 responses) 

 
 

Question 18 (Equalities data) (102 responses) 
 

 
 
 

Heterosexual 
/ Straight

Gay man 
/ 

Homosex
ual

Gay 
women / 
Lesbian

Bisexual Pansexual ACE

I identify 
in 

another 
way

Prefer 
not to 

say

Percentage of people 79.05% 6.67% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.00% 0.00% 11.43%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Sexual Orientation?

Yes No Prefer not to say
Percentage of people 50.98% 41.18% 7.84%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Are you married or in a civil partnership?

Tudalen 36



Page 17 of 34 
 

Question 19 (Equalities data) (105 responses) 

 
 

Question 20 (Equalities data) (104 responses) 
 

 
 
 

BuddhistChristianHindu JewishMuslim Sikh Any 
other Athiest

No 
reli
gio
n

AgnosticHumanist
Prefer 
not to 

say

Percentage of people 0.95%43.81%0.00% 0.00% 0.95% 0.00% 3.81%13.33%22.86%1.90% 0.00%12.38%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Religion / Belief?

Female Male Prefer not to say
Percentage of people 43.27% 51.92% 4.81%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

What is your sex?

Tudalen 37



Page 18 of 34 
 

Question 21 (Equalities data) (105 responses) 

 
 

Question 22 (Equalities data) (105, 107, 102 responses) 
 

 
 
  

Yes No Prefer not to say
Percentage of people 91.43% 0.95% 7.62%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Is your gender identity the same as the sex assigned to you at birth?

Do you care for children of 
school age?

Do you care for children of 
pre-school age?

Do you care for a 
dependent adult or child 

above school age?
Yes 24.76% 14.95% 10.38%
No 69.52% 79.44% 83.96%
Prefer not to say 5.71% 5.61% 5.66%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Caring Responsibilities?

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e

Tudalen 38



Page 19 of 34 
 

 

5.0 Assessment of the results 
 
5.1 Summary.  
 

108 electronic responses were received although for many questions 106 or 105 
responses actual made. A small number of questions had a 100% response rate.  
 
There was strong support across these responses for the restrictions contained in the 
PSPO with each current restriction receiving over 95% support during the consultation.  
 
Over 30% of respondents were residents of the City Centre or worked in the City Centre 
(15.8 and 14.9% respectively).   
 
Over 82% of respondents indicated they had experienced Anti-Social Behaviour 
occasionally or frequently.  
 
Littering, drinking on the streets and aggressive begging were the top three forms of 
ASB experienced by the respondents, although Groups gathering, drug paraphernalia 
and aggressive use of a push bike/e-bike were frequently reported.  
 
Every restriction had over 93% agreement for inclusion and almost 70% (69.9%) of 
respondents said they felt no additional controls were needed in the order.  
 
54% of people were satisfied with the current boundary, while a significant number (41%) 
wished to increase the boundary.  
 

5.2  Begging 
 

Scrutiny Committee requested that the public be asked about removing the “within 10 
meters” proximity to a cash point or payment machine, caveat within the begging 
restriction (PSPO restriction No3). This restriction was included in the existing PSPO 
due to specific concern raised by members of the public around feeling intimidated by 
begging in proximity to a number of banks and payment machines that are in the city 
centre. The PSPO has had an impact in dealing with this issue. 

 
 102 of 107 (>95%) of respondents to question 5a agreed for the continued need for the 

restriction as currently worded in the extant PSPO. 
 
 84 of 107 (78.5%) of respondents to question 5c agreed that the link to cash machines 

or payment machines, and within 10m thereof be included in the restrictions.  
 
 The comment associated with Questions 5 responses show a polarisation of opinion 

across the respondents. Some examples quoted from the public responses are below: 
 

4 comments were received on Question 5a (if you disagree with the existing 
controls, why) 
 
“The benefits of this are unclear and not supported by evidence” 
 
“Being homeless is not a crime. Pushing homeless out of the city centre does not solve 
the housing crisis and is morally wrong.” 
 

Tudalen 39



Page 20 of 34 
 

19 comments were received on Question 5b (any additional comments on the 
existing controls) 
 
“Ban begging entirely. No one is destitute. We have charities to help those in need and 
a benefits system. There is no need for anyone to beg in our city. It is undesirable.” 
 
“People politely sitting and asking for spare change (away from cash points) is in no way 
initimidating and should not necessarily be "tidied away" to make local conservative 
councillors happy.” 
 
“Ban begging and rough sleeping in the city centre all together. The consequences are 
serious for overall residents wellbeing, with begging and rough sleeping and associated 
drug use acting as a major deterrent to using the city centre. This leads to boarded up 
shops, reduced city centre trade and damaging the local economy. Ultimately this leads 
to less revenue for the council to deal with the root causes of these issues.” 
 
“Difficult one, but begging in the street is intimidating and as such is a ASB.” 
 
“Order helped in stopping what could be experienced as intimidating behaviour” 
 
30 comments were received on Question 5c (Should the 10m and cashpoint link 
be removed Agree/Disagree? Please explain) 
 
“The Order should include a total ban on begging anywhere in the restricted area.” 
 
“Absolutely I have been asked for money away from cash points, there is no need to 
beg, it puts people off visiting the city centre. Give them help and support instead.” 
 
“Whilst some begging is polite, there is also ‘demanding’ and recrimination if refused. 
The scale of begging is out out hand with multiple requests on a single journey up 
Commercial Street / Bridge Street / High Street. The aggression increases as the day 
goes on.” 
 
“I feel there should be greater emphasis on work to support those who find themselves 
in the position where begging is their means of support . Fining those who are already 
in financial difficulty, homeless, or struggling with mental health, addiction etc doesn’t 
address the root cause or solve the situation.” 
 

5.3 E-Bikes, E-Scooters 
 
Scrutiny Committee requested that consideration be given to aggressive or unsafe use 
of bikes, e-bikes and scooters. 45.63% of respondents to the consultation cited this 
specific type of activity as ASB. 5 people specifically commented on requesting these 
controls within the PSPO at Question 9 – any additional controls. 

 
“Control of ebikes/escooter use on pavements” 
 
“Much more regulation of e scooters- they are so dangerous particularly on the riverfront 
paths and footbridge. Bikes and other vehicles should not be allowed on the footbridge 
- they are such a danger to pedestrians as they fly over the bridge which is often very 
busy.” 
 
“use of ebikes and escooters banned and riding of bicycles controlled” 
 

5.4  Enforcement/Partnership working 

Tudalen 40



Page 21 of 34 
 

A number of response called for all parties to work more closely in dealing with issues 
in and around City Centre and for increased patrols and enforcement associated with 
the PSPO. Examples of some comments taken from across the consultation response: 

 
“An actual presence of authority figures, it's all well and good making laws, useless if 
not enforced.” 

 
“The wardens should be more proactive, as they seem to do very little to stop anti 
social behaviour.” 

 
“I think stronger Police presence would be better” 
 
“Need more and frequent high visibility police patrols in these areas” 

 
5.5 Urination/defecation 
 

In the July 2021 Scrutiny Report, a recommendation was made to include a restriction 
on ““No person shall urinate or defecate in a public space or in public view except in a 
premises designated for that purpose within the Restricted Area.”. This mirrored a 
restriction in the Pillgwenlly PSPO. This was included as result of ASB officer feedback 
from Newport ASB/Community Safety Wardens Teams.  

  
 28% of respondents indicated they experienced this form of ASB.  
 
5.6 Area Extension 

 
A number of comments supported extension of the PSPO restricted area. Locations 
suggested for inclusion include: Clarence Place, Pillgwenlly, Maindee and Victoria 
Wards and the Malpas Road area. A number of respondents suggested that the 
restrictions be imposed across Newport. 

 
5.7 A small number of comments were made across the public response indicating concern 

that the restrictions may be too draconian. 
 

“Over zealous traffic wardens with power trip attitudes.” 
 

“Public servants, not gestapo” 
 

5.8 Recommendations to Scrutiny: 
 

5.8.1 Recommendation to Scrutiny Committee to retain the existing PSPO 
conditions, and include an additional restriction on aggressive and dangerous 
use of E.bikes, scooters etc. in the city centre which would mirror the restriction 
included in the Pillgwenlly PSPO made by the Council earlier this year. 
 
“Cyclists, or users of scooters, E-scooters, E-bikes, skateboards and hover boards, are 
to dismount if requested to do so by an authorised officer, if they are of the opinion that 
the operator is riding in an unsafe manner which is causing or is likely to cause a danger 
to the public in the Restricted Area.” 
 
5.8.2 Recommendation to Scrutiny Committee to retain the existing PSPO 
restriction wording to retain the link to cashpoints, payment machines and 
aggressive nature of begging. There is concern regarding begging within the City 
Centre, however, begging is not anti-social behaviour if undertaken in respectful 

Tudalen 41



Page 22 of 34 
 

and non-aggressive manner, and the relevant legislation is in place to respond to 
anti-social behaviour. 
 
5.8.3 Recommendation to Scrutiny not to include a restriction on Urination or 
Defecation 

 
 

 
  

Tudalen 42



Page 23 of 34 
 

Section B – Supporting Information 
7.0 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
7.1  These have already been considered in the initial report to Scrutiny Committee in 
February 2021. 
 

8.0 Risks 
 
8.1  These have already been highlighted in the initial report to Committee in July 2021. 

9.0 Financial Implications 
 
9.1  There are no financial implications to the Scrutiny committee reviewing the need for the 
PSPO, consultation process or proposed amendments to the PSPO. There are no financial 
costs associated with undertaking the consultation.  

10.0 Background Documents 
 
10.1 These have already been provided in the report to Committee in July 2021. 
 
 
Report Completed: 16 September 2021. 
  

Tudalen 43



Page 24 of 34 
 

Appendix 1: Electronic copy of full feedback 
 

Results - City 
Centre PSPO Survey 2021 v1.0.xlsx 
 
  

Tudalen 44



Page 25 of 34 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Fairness and Equalities Impact Assessment (FEIA)
     
Version 3.6 May 2017 

The purpose of this assessment is to provide balanced information to support decision making and 
to promote better ways of working in line with equalities (Equalities Act 2010), Welsh language 
promotion (The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011), sustainable development (Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015), and the four parameters of debate about fairness identified 
by the Newport Fairness Commission (NFC Full Report to Council 2013). 

Completed by:  Rhys Thomas  Role: Principal EHO  
  
Head of Service: Gareth Price  Date: 15/09/2021  
 
I confirm that the above Head of Service has agreed the content of this assessment  

Yes  

When you complete this FEIA, it is your responsibility to submit it to 
impact.assessment@newport.gov.uk  

1. Name and description of the policy / proposal being assessed. Outline the policy’s 
purpose.  
 
Review of the current City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) (Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014) to ensure that the restrictions in the Order address the anti-social 
behaviour currently being experienced in Newport City Centre. 
 
This review is supported by Gwent Police who feel that revised restrictions will improve their ability 
to deal with the anti-social behaviour being experienced by members of the public. 
 
The Order provides enforcement officers with additional powers than those provided by existing 
legislation, as Fixed Penalty Notices can be issued for non-compliance with a PSPO restriction.  

 
 
2. Outline how you have/ will involve stakeholders who will be affected by the 
policy/proposal 
 
This review has been led by the Overview & Management Scrutiny Committee. At its 
meeting in July 2021, the Scrutiny Committee considered the issues and agreed for public 
consultation to commence to seek views on experiences of the city centre, views on review 
the current restrictions, possible amendments to them and views on possible new measures 
to be included in a revised PSPO. Over 100 responses to that consultation were received. 
The 2019 Well Being Assessment of Stow Hill Ward provides the most recent data on the 
population make-up of Stow Hill Ward, the ward that accounts for the majority of the 
restricted area within the PSPO.  
 
 

Tudalen 45



Page 26 of 34 
 

3. What information/evidence do you have on stakeholders? e.g. views, needs, 
service usage etc. Please include all the evidence you consider relevant.  
 
The results of the public consultation have been summarised and included in the report to 
Scrutiny Committee for the meeting on 23 September 2021. 

 
4. Equalities and Welsh language impact 

 
Impact:  

Protected 
characteristic 

Po
si

tiv
e 

N
eg

at
iv

e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 

 
Age  ☒ ☒ ☐ Positive: 

The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 
the immediate area, which would promote community 
cohesion and increase footfall in the city centre. 
 
Reducing ASB in the area should also help to ensure that 
the area is a safer place for young people to interact, as well 
as ensure the environment is safer for all age groups. 
 
Negative: 
The proposals are designed to provide the Police with 
additional powers to disperse individuals and groups who 
are causing ASB, from the area. This is likely to impact on 
people in the 10 – 24 years and the 25 – 34 years census 
categories more than other age categories. 
 
2019 Community Wellbeing assessment/ward analysis 
shows Stow Hill has a low percentage of 0-15 year olds.  
 
 
 

 
Disability  ☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 

the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 
Unsafe use of bikes, scooters and e-bikes (et al) may affect 
those with visual impairment, or a disability more than 
others.  
 
10% of consultation responses identified as being disabled 
in some way.  
 
 

Tudalen 46



Page 27 of 34 
 

Impact:  
Protected 
characteristic 

Po
si

tiv
e 

N
eg

at
iv

e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 

 
Gender 
reassignment/ 
transgender  

☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 
the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 

 
Marriage or civil 
partnership  

☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 
the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 
50% of consultation respondents were married, 41% 
indicated not. 7% preferred not to say. 
 

 
Pregnancy or 
maternity  

☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 
the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 

 
Race  ☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 

the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 
89% of consultation respondents identified as being White, 
Welsh, English, Scottish, Irish, British. 
 
7.41% of consultation respondents preferred not to say. 
<1% of consultation respondents identified as White Other, 
Other mixed and other ethnic group. 
 
2019 Community Well Being Profile of Stow Hill Ward: 

Tudalen 47



Page 28 of 34 
 

Impact:  
Protected 
characteristic 

Po
si

tiv
e 

N
eg

at
iv

e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 

 
 
  
 

 
Religion or Belief 
or non-belief  

☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 
the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 
43% of consultation respondents identified as being 
Christian 
 
22% of consultation respondents as having no religion 
 
13% of consultation respondents as being atheist 
 
12% preferred not to say. 
 
<1% of consultation respondents indicated they were 
Muslim or Buddhist. 
 
2019 Community Wellbeing Ward analysis of Religious 
beliefs: 

Tudalen 48



Page 29 of 34 
 

Impact:  
Protected 
characteristic 

Po
si

tiv
e 

N
eg

at
iv

e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 

 
 
 

 
Sex/ Gender 
Identity  

☐ ☒ ☐ Within the evidence provided by Gwent Police and the 
Council’s Community Safety team, where the sex of the 
youths causing problems is mentioned, the sex is ‘male’ in 
the majority of incidents. Therefore the proposals may have 
an impact on male individuals. 
 
91.43% of respondents indicated their gender identity at the 
time of responding was the same as at birth. 
 
0.95% indicated their current gender identity is not the same 
as at birth. 
 
7.62% of respondents preferred not to say. 
 

 
Sexual Orientation  ☒ ☐ ☐ The proposed restrictions are designed to reduce ASB in 

the city centre, which would promote community cohesion 
and help eliminate potential harassment/victimisation. This 
should help to ensure that groups of all protected 
characteristics feel more confident in using the space. 
 
79% of consultation respondents indicated they were 
heterosexual. 
 
6% of consultation respondents indicated they were 
homosexual. 
 
11% preferred not to indicate. 
 
 

 

Tudalen 49



Page 30 of 34 
 

Impact:  
Protected 
characteristic 

Po
si

tiv
e 

N
eg

at
iv

e 

N
ei

th
er

  

 
Provide further details about the nature of the impact in 
the section below. Does it: 

1. Promote equal opportunity 
2. Promote community cohesion  
3. Help eliminate unlawful discrimination/ 

harassment/ victimisation? 
 

Welsh Language  ☐ ☐ ☒ The proposals will not have an impact on this issue. 
 
9% of consultation respondents indicated they were a 
Welsh Speaker.  
 
81% of consultation respondents indicated they were not a 
welsh speaker.  
 
9% preferred not to say.  

 
  

Tudalen 50



Page 31 of 34 
 

5 How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable 
development principle in its development? 

Sustainable 
Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this principle?  
Describe how. 

Balancing short term 
need with long term 
needs 

The maximum duration of a Public Spaces Protection Order is 3 
years but it could be renewed if appropriate. The aim of the 
proposals is to reduce ASB in the area and it is hoped that this would 
have a long term benefit to the community. 

 
 
 
 
 
Working together to 
deliver objectives  

Only the Council can make a Public Spaces Protection Order, 
however it would provide the Police with additional/alternative 
powers with which to address ASB in the area. The Community 
Safety team will continue to work together with the Police and other 
agencies/partners to address ASB. The Police support the 
proposals. 

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

The review of the City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order has 
been led by Scrutiny and the public consultation undertaken was 
designed to be wide-ranging. 
 

 
 
 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

A Public Spaces Protection Order cannot address the roots causes 
of why some individuals cause ASB in this area, but Partners within 
the Public Services Board work closely together to ensure that 
resources are used to address such causes where possible. 
 

Tudalen 51



Page 32 of 34 
 

Sustainable 
Development 

Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this principle?  
Describe how. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies   
 

The proposal is to put in place a revised Public Spaces Protection 
Order (PSPO) which has been designed to have a positive impact on 
the following Well-being goals: 
 
Well-being Goals 
• A prosperous Wales – the PSPO would reduce ASB in the area. 

ASB can impact on the education of children and on the success 
of businesses. 

• A healthier Wales – the PSPO would reduce ASB which would 
help improve the mental well-being of those currently affected. 

• A Wales of cohesive communities – the PSPO would help to 
protect the local community and make it more viable and safe. 

 
The information included above shows that there would be a positive 
impact on Newport City Council’s Well-being Goals, as set out 
below: 
 
• To improve skills, educational outcomes and employment 

opportunities 
• To promote economic growth and regeneration whilst protecting 

the environment 
• To enable people to be healthy, independent and resilient 
• To build cohesive and sustainable communities 

 
 
6 Will the proposal/policy have a disproportionate impact on a specific 
geographical area of Newport?  
 

The proposal is designed to impact on the city centre – Stow Hill Electoral Ward – which is 
appropriate due to the specific nature of the area and the specific ASB being experienced. 
 
 
 

 
7 How does the proposal/policy relate to the parameters of debate 
about Fairness identified by the Newport Fairness Commission  
 

Parameter 1 deals with equal treatment whilst recognising difference. The proposal will primarily 
impact on specific groups and individuals who are acting in an anti-social and intimidating 
manner and they will intentionally be subject to the PSPO restrictions.  
 
Parameter 2 deals with “mutual obligations between citizens and local government”. Local 
Government’s responsibility is to help ensure the safety, security and wellbeing of citizens in 
their communities, the PSPO introduces conditions which will apply to citizens who act in a way 
that is detrimental to the safety and wellbeing of the wider community which restricts those 
citizen’s rights in the specified area.  
 

Tudalen 52



Page 33 of 34 
 

Parameter 3 deals with “interdependency and reciprocity within community relations”. Anti-social 
and intimidating behaviour is known to affect the wellbeing of individuals but also affects the 
functioning and cohesiveness of communities e.g. in the use of local services, and participation 
in community life. The intention of the PSPO is to only restrict activities that are detrimental to 
participation in community life.  
 
Parameter 4 deals with “transparency and accountability in decision making”. It is recognised 
that PSPO’s are by nature restrictive and must be balanced with proportionality, effective 
targeting and limitation. The consultation undertaken was conducted to ensure that the local 
community could express their views on the proposals and inform democratic decision making.  
 
 

 
8 Taking this assessment as a whole, what could be done to mitigate 
any negative impacts of your policy and better contribute to positive 
impacts?  
 

Should the revised PSPO restrictions be supported by Council, high quality publicity, provision of 
advice and proportionate and evidence based enforcement will be key to mitigating any negative 
impacts. 
 
 

9 Monitoring, evaluating and reviewing 
 

Monitoring of the implementation and operation of the previous PSPO within the city centre was 
undertaken and this will continue should the new PSPO be implemented. The Scrutiny 
Committee may wish to agree to include review and monitoring of the implementation of the new 
City Centre PSPO on their forward work programme. 
 
The impact of the new PSPO (if implemented) will also be reviewed as part of the process to 
implement a future PSPO (maximum 3 years’ time). 
 
 

 
10 Involvement 

This FEIA will form part of the report to Scrutiny and Full Council and will be published by the 
Council. 
 
 

 
11 Summary of Impact (for inclusion in any report)  

 
Equality Act 2010 AND Welsh Language  
 
The proposed PSPO will have an impact on some protected characteristics but not to the extent 
that the proposals could be judged to be unreasonable. 
 
There is no Welsh Language impact. 
 

Tudalen 53



Page 34 of 34 
 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The proposed PSPO will support a number of the Well-being goals set out in the Act. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 54



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
 
Date:  21 September 2021 
 
 
Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Role 
 

Connor Hall (Scrutiny Adviser) Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for 
discussion and update the Committee on any changes. 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
2.1 The purpose of a forward work programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation 

and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective 
work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.2 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 

new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s 
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

 

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1):

• Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next 
Committee meeting?

• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

Tudalen 55

Eitem Agenda 6

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


2.3 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 
work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely 
and well-planned manner. 

   
 Forward Work Programme Update 
2.4 The Committee’s work programme was set in April 2021, including estimated timescales for when 

the reports will be considered by the Committee. This programme is then managed and 
implemented by the designated Scrutiny Adviser for this Committee under the direction of the 
Committee Chairperson.  
 

2.5 Attached as Appendix 1 is the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update.  The Committee 
is asked to consider:  
• Any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next Committee meeting? 
• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics? 
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request? 

 
The Committee agreed to keep a degree of flexibility within its work programme to enable the 
Committee to respond to urgent / emerging issues. This item is an opportunity for the Committee 
members to raise any suggested amendments to the Work Programme.  

 
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached: 
 
 Appendix 1: The Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update; 
 Appendix 2; Outcomes from the previous meeting 
   
 
4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
 
  

 
 
 
Section B – Supporting Information 
5 Supporting Information 
 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Forward Work Programme Update - Appendix 1
Consider:

o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the 
next Committee meeting?

o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider 
the topics?

o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

Tudalen 56



5.1 The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent follow up assessment provide background 
information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need 
to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function 
is maximised. 

 
5.2 The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next 

12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration.  Effective forward planning 
by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports 
to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken.  A link to the Cabinet work 
programme is provided here to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to 
ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.   

6. Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
  6.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery 
of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned 
manner.   

 
6.2    This report relates to the Committee’s Work Programme, Actions from Committee’s and  

Information Reports that support the achievement of the Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with  
the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and Measures and the Wellbeing 
objectives:  
 

 
Well-being 
Objectives  
 

Promote economic 
growth and 
regeneration whilst 
protecting the 
environment  
 

Improve skills, 
educational 
outcomes & 
employment 
opportunities  
 

Enable 
people to be 
healthy, 
independent 
& resilient  
 

Build 
cohesive & 
sustainable 
communities  
 

Corporate Plan 
Commitments 

Thriving City  Aspirational People Resilient 
Communities 

Supporting 
Function 

Modernised Council 

 
 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the 

context for the move towards long term planning of services.   
 

7.2 General questions 
• How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?   
• How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 

term impact?   
• What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   
• Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  
• Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 

 
7.3 Wellbeing Goals 

• How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 

Tudalen 57

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf
file:///T:/ISC/Democratic_Admin/Democratic%20Admin%20Shared%20Files/DEMOCRATIC%20ADMIN/CABINET/Work%20programme/2021-22%20CABINET%20WORK%20PROGRAMME.docx


o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 
7.4 Sustainable Development Principles 

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance 
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 
o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
8 Background Papers 
 

• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2017 - 2022 
• The Corporate Assessment and follow up assessment.  

 
 
Report Completed: 12 September 2021 

  

Tudalen 58

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2017-2022.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf


Appendix 1) Forward Work Programme 
 

Friday, 29 October 2021 at 10am 

Topic Information Required / Committee’s Role 
 
Climate Change 
 

 

. Waiting for information from service area.   

 

Friday 10th December at 10am 

Topic Information Required / Committee’s Role 
 
Welsh Language 5 
Year Strategy 

 
Waiting for information from service area.  

 
  

Tudalen 59



Appendix 2) Action Sheet 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
ACTION SHEET – 10/09/2021 

 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

1 Corporate Plan (and 
Director of Social 
Services Report) 

 

Send Committee 
Recommendations on to the 
relevant departments. 

Scrutiny Adviser Completed – emailed 
comments and 
recommendations  

2 Strategic Equalities 
Report 

 

Send Committee 
Recommendations on to the 
relevant departments. 

Scrutiny Adviser Completed – emailed 
comments and 
recommendations  

3 Minutes 

 

 

Send Committee minutes to 
approve within a week of 
the meeting. 

Scrutiny Adviser Completed – sent minutes 
attached to Agenda 
23.09.2021 for approval. 

 

Tudalen 60


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf
	4 PSPO Canol y Ddinas
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject:	City Centre PSPO - 2021-2024 (Public Spaces Protection Order)
	2.0	Context and History
	2.1 Scrutiny Committee previous hearing – July 2021


	3.0 Proposed City Centre PSPO (2021 – 2024)
	4.0	Consultation feedback
	Question 1 (107 responses)
	Question 2 (107 responses)
	Question 2a (103 responses)
	Question 3	(107 responses)
	Question 4	(107 responses)
	Question 5	(107 responses)
	Question 5C (107 responses)
	Question 6	(108 responses)
	Question 7	(108 responses)
	Question 8 (108 responses)
	Question 9 (101 responses)
	Question 10 (106 responses)
	Question 11 (Equalities data) (108 responses)
	Question 12 (Equalities data) (108 responses)
	Question 13 (Equalities data) (107 responses)
	Question 14 (Equalities data) (107 responses)
	Question 15 (Equalities data) (106 responses)
	Question 16 (Equalities data) (108 responses)
	Question 17 (Equalities data) (105 responses)
	Question 18 (Equalities data) (102 responses)
	Question 19 (Equalities data) (105 responses)
	Question 20 (Equalities data) (104 responses)
	Question 21 (Equalities data) (105 responses)
	Question 22 (Equalities data) (105, 107, 102 responses)

	5.0	Assessment of the results
	5.8	Recommendations to Scrutiny:


	Section B – Supporting Information
	7.0	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	8.0	Risks
	9.0	Financial Implications
	10.0	Background Documents


	6 Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Scrutiny Adviser Report

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	5	Supporting Information
	6.	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	8	Background Papers



